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FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS WITH ANSWERS 
 
 

Questions from the T6/EU9/2021 online information session on 30/11 
 

IRIS 

 
1.  Will assignments from different contracts appear on the same page or screen in IRIS? 

 If you are a holder of multiple contracts, they will indeed appear in the same 
inbox in IRIS. IRIS does not indicate to which contract a particular assignment 

belongs, therefore it is up to you to check and act accordingly.  

  

2.  Is it possible to mark jobs with the contract number in IRIS? 

 Unfortunately, it is not possible at the moment. In most cases, you can find out 
to which contract the job belongs by language combination or deadline given to 
accept/reject the particular job.  

For more information on some exceptions, please check the answer to the next 
question.  

  

3.  What about monolingual documents under different contracts - how can we know to 
which contract the job belongs? 

 In general, by looking at the combination of source and target language and at 
the deadline for accepting/rejecting an assignment, you can distinguish whether 
the job belongs to T6 or a different contract.   

If you have contracts with the EP under both T1 and T6 calls for tender (ES, 
HR, PL and RO target languages only) , you might be able to tell from the email 
or the information in Iris under which contract the job (EN or FR monolingual 
source text only) is offered since the scheduled time for reply is 3 hours under 
T1 and only 2 hours under T6. If you have contracts with us under both T5 and 
T6 (BG, GA, LT, MT and SL target languages only), there is currently no means 
to tell from the email or the information in Iris alone under which contract the 
job (EN monolingual source texts only) is offered. In any case, should you have 
any doubt as to under which framework contract the job is being assigned, 
please do not hesitate to contact us via  the corresponding Group mailbox for 
the assignment in question. 

  

4.  There are monolingual and multilingual contracts in place. Multilingual contracts can      
also cover some monolingual texts. How to distinguish between these contracts? 

 In most cases, there will be two different sets of contracts in place. For 
example, there will be contracts under T6 - main contractor and one or more 
secondary contractors - which will cover either monolingual or multilingual 
documents.  
At the same time, there will be parallel dynamic ranking contract s containing 
a longer list of framework contractors, uniquely covering monolingual source 
texts with (T5) or without (T1) a capacity limitation.  
The information you see in the assignment email will generally allow you to 
determine the correct contract from the language combination or response time 
given to accept/reject the particular job.  For more information on some 
exceptions, please check the answer to the previous question.  
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5.    Could you mention the different response times helping to differentiate projects belonging 
to the monolingual contract based on dynamic ranking? 

 Response time for T6 contracts in Iris: 2 hours.  
Response time for monolingual T5 dynamic  ranking contracts with a capacity 
limitation of 10 pages per day (BG, LT, MT, SL): 2 hours.   
Response time for monolingual T1 dynamic ranking contracts (ES,  PL, HR, 
RO): 3 hours.  

  

6.  How will the ranking of contractors work under T6 contracts? We understand that the 
main contractor is obliged to accept all the assignments at least until the minimum 
contractual capacity limit has been reached. However, we wonder how often it may be the 
case that lower-ranked contractors will have to support the main contractor? 

 For most of the T6 contracts, there is a main contractor and one or more 
secondary contractors. The secondary contractors play a vital part in our 
resource planning. Under the similar T3 contracts, there were recent cases  in 
June 2021 when the main contractors reached or in some cases far exceeded 
the minimum capacity. In these cases, the secondary contractors received 
multiple assignments until the workload of the main contractor fell.  Such 
situations are very likely to repeat towards the end of legislative period.  

 

7.  Is it possible that the ranking of a contractor may change? For example, because of low-
quality scores or if a higher-ranked contractor rejects the assignments? 

 The ranking of contractors under T6 is fixed and there is no periodic re -ranking 
based on quality and price . However, it is possible that the European Parliament 
as contracting authority may terminate the main contract on the grounds of 
failure to meet contractual obligations. In that case, the main contract would 
then be offered to the first -ranked secondary contractor. 

   

8.  In case where the main contractor is about to reach the minimum contractual capacity, 
will a warning be sent to the secondary contractor? Or will the job be automatically 
assigned to secondary contractor in Iris? 

 Our priority is the continuous flow of assignments  to contractors when 
outsourcing has been requested. Therefore, ETU is constantly monitoring the 

contract (workload relative to deadlines , etc.) to prospectively identify  
situations where the main contractor may not be able to accept any further jobs. 
On such occasions, ETU will aim to inform the secondary contractors even 
before the  main contractor reaches its guaranteed minimum capacity.  

 
  

 

 

Pre-translated packages 

 

1.  Can the relay / pivot text source also be colored in blue? 

 The blue color is applied only to the left-hand column of documents containing 
amendments in columns. The color should be present in such documents in the 
main, Mef and Relay packages. If it is not there, please contact the PreTrad unit 
via dgtrad.etuquality@europarl.europa.eu. 

  

2.  Why are there translation memories both inside the TMX folder and outside of it? What 
is the difference? 

mailto:dgtrad.etuquality@europarl.europa.eu
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 TMX folder only contains TMX files of the reference documents . It does not 
contain translation memories. Regarding translation memories, there are several 

types of them, according to the type of document.  

For example, for amendments there is a basic reference memory (BRTM) 
containing only the tmx file corresponding to the basic reference document, a 
normative memory (Normative_TM) containing the normative retrieval tmx 
with standard text matches  and a working memory (WTM), which contains all 

references in tmx format. More information on this is available  in the applicable 
Safe Working Protocol (SWP), also found inside each pre-treated package. 

  

3.  In the past, there were issues with the processing of pre-treated EP packages with SDL 

Studio 2021 due to missing tags. Have they been resolved in the new Studio version used 
by the EP (Studio 2019)? 

 Usually missing tags and footnotes are due to issues in the original document. 
Whenever you encounter such issue s, please contact us and we will do our best 
to resolve them.  
In addition, we have migrated to SDL Studio version 2019; with the new 
version, incompatibility issues (more frequent between Studio 2015 and Studio 
2021) should have disappeared.  

  

 

 

EP Official Documents (RdM/DocEP/workflows) 

 

1.  Do you anticipate any training or workshops for project managers regarding the use of 
DocEP? 

 We have not foreseen any particular training sessions. However, there are self-
learning information resources available on the External translation platform and 
on the DocEP website for external translators. In addition, there is a possibility to  
ask for specific assistance if required.  

   

2. Could it be possible to get more detailed instructions or perhaps organize some 
training on how to create specific document types? We often have issues with PR 
documents. 

 Normally, in terms of DocEP there should not be a difference between creating 
PRs or any other document type. The reason might be a general issue with the 

use of DocEP, which is most frequently used for legislative documents, 
including PRs. We will be happy to look into any specific issues you may have. 
P lease fill out the Request for Assistance form on the External translation 
platform and send it by email to dgtrad.etuquality@europarl.europa.eu. 

 

 
  

 

 

Quality control, penalties and invoices 

 

1.  Is it correct that the minimum translation capacity acceptable for a secondary 
contractor is the same as for the main contractor for DE, IT and ES languages? For 
other languages, it is different. 

 Yes, it is correct. 

  

https://www.europarl.europa.eu/trad/etu/ep.html
https://www.europarl.europa.eu/portalep/Downloads/docep/repere/docep/Welcome.html
mailto:dgtrad.etuquality@europarl.europa.eu
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2.  What exactly does this mean in practice? 
Could you elaborate more when, for the main contract, “any further assignment will be 
stopped” and “contract will be put on hold”? Should a secondary contractor be able to 
start translating once a higher placed contractor stopped accepting? 

 In principle, yes. However, in most cases, we should be able to warn you in 
advance before we start to assign jobs to you as a secondary contra ctor. We 
completely understand that there is a certain minimum time required in order to 
organize your team and we are ready to discuss the most convenient moment for 
all sides to start the assignment flow  within the limits of the contract terms .  

 
  

3.  From your experience, are secondary contractors ranked 3rd or below actually needed 
for the execution of the contract? 

 Yes. Our most recent experience  in 2021 has shown that 3rd or lower ranked 
contractors may need to be contacted in order to start accepting assignments. 
Although it is difficult to forecast, there is a strong chance such situations will 
recur as the overall demand for translation increases towards the end of the 
legislature . We aim to be proactive and contact you in advance in order to allow 
you sufficient time for preparing your resources  to accept translation 
assignments. 

  

4.  In the tender specifications section 2.1 it is mentioned that “For the purposes of 
calculating the workload we may treat multilingual source language documents 
as English source language documents”. Does that mean that a multilingual document 
comprising 60 pages EN, 10 FR and 5 IT will be counted as 75 EN pages for the purpose 
of minimum capacity calculation? 

 In principle, yes. This is a rule which allows us to flexibly interpret the situation 
where main or secondary contractors are about to reach their minimum 
guaranteed capacity. In such cases some pages can be counted as English source 
pages. Our main goal is not to impose penalties but to work cooperatively with 
our main and secondary contractors in order to maintain the flow of outsourcing 

as much as possible.  

   

5.  Example: multilingual documents transformed into monolingual through relay. In this 
case, is the relay treated as the new original and pages re -counted based on it? 

 No, the Relay is not treated as the new original for the purposes of page 
counting. The original (multilingual) page count still sta nds.  

  

6.  It was mentioned that some early warnings can be sent to the secondary contractors in 
case of reactivation. How early would this be possible? 

 ETU is working together with EP language units and Planning in order to 
establish the most efficient action plan for such cases and provide a warning as 
early as possible .  

   

 

 

 


